

trative procedure Act, petitions for judicial review may be filed in the district court of the county in which the hearing under section 86.17 was held, ~~and the workers' compensation commissioner shall transmit to the reviewing court the original or a certified copy of the entire record of the contested case which is the subject of the petition within thirty days after receiving written notice from the party filing the petition that a petition for judicial review has been filed, and an application for stay of agency action during the pendency of judicial review shall not be filed in the division of workers' compensation of the department of workforce development but shall be filed with the district court.~~ Such a review proceeding shall be accorded priority over other matters pending before the district court.

Sec. 8. Section 627.13, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:

627.13 WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

~~Any~~ Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 554.9406 and 554.9408, any compensation due or that may become due an employee or dependent under chapter 85, ~~85A, or 85B~~ is exempt from garnishment, attachment, execution, and assignment of income, except for the purposes of enforcing child, spousal, or medical support obligations. For the purposes of enforcing child, spousal, or medical support obligations, an assignment of income, garnishment or attachment of or the execution against compensation due an employee under chapter 85, ~~85A, or 85B~~ is not exempt but shall be limited as specified in 15 U.S.C. § 1673(b).

Sec. 9. Section 668.13, subsection 3, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:

3. Interest shall be calculated as of the date of judgment at a rate equal to the ~~coupon issue yield equivalent, as determined by the United States secretary of the treasury, of the average accepted auction price for the last auction of fifty two week United States treasury bills~~ treasury constant maturity index published by the federal reserve in the H15 Report settled immediately prior to the date of the judgment plus two percent. The state court administrator shall distribute notice monthly of that rate and any changes to that rate to all district courts.

Sec. 10. Section 9 of this Act, being deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment and applies retroactively to February 28, 2001.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 88

CITY ENTERPRISES — FUNDING OF CHILD CARE CENTER CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPMENT

H.F. 535

AN ACT allowing cities to issue general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, or loan agreements to fund the construction and equipping of child care centers and providing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 384.24, subsection 2, Code 2001, is amended by adding the following new paragraph:

NEW PARAGRAPH. 1. Child care centers providing child care or preschool services, or both. For purposes of this paragraph, "child care" means providing for the care, supervision, and guidance of a child by a person other than the parent, guardian, relative, or custodian for periods of less than twenty-four hours per day on a regular basis. For purposes of this paragraph, "preschool" means child care which provides to children ages three through five,

for periods of time not exceeding three hours per day, programs designed to help the children to develop intellectual skills, and motor skills, and to extend their interest and understanding of the world about them.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 89

DRAINAGE OR LEVEE DISTRICT ELECTION DISTRICTS — SIZE

H.F. 581

AN ACT relating to the size of drainage or levee districts having election districts.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 468.504, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:
468.504 ELECTION DISTRICTS.

When a petition has been filed for the election of trustees to manage a district containing ~~three~~ twenty thousand acres or more, the board, or, if the district extends into more than one county, the boards of ~~such the~~ counties by joint action, shall, before the election, divide the district into three election districts for the purpose of securing a proper distribution of trustees in ~~such the~~ district, and ~~such the~~ division shall be so made that each election district will have substantially equal voting power and acreage, as nearly as may be. After ~~such the~~ division is made there shall be elected one trustee for each of ~~said the~~ election districts, but at ~~such the~~ election all the qualified voters for the entire district shall be entitled to vote for each trustee. The division here provided for shall be for the purposes only of a proper distribution of trustees in the district and shall not otherwise affect ~~said the~~ district or its management and control.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 90

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RELEASE AND USE OF PERSONAL INFORMATION

H.F. 647

AN ACT relating to the release and use of certain personal information by the state department of transportation.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 321.11, subsections 2 and 4, Code 2001, are amended to read as follows:
2. Notwithstanding subsection 1, personal information shall not be disclosed to a re-